Joint Board of County Commissioners and Board of Education Committee Meeting
September 9, 2021
9:00am
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street

Minutes

A Joint committee consisting of three Chowan County Board of Commissioners and three
members of the Edenton Chowan Board of Education met on Thursday, September 9, 2021,
2021 at 9:00 am at the Chowan County Public Safety Center, 305 West Freemason St. Edenton,
NC 27932.

Attendees:

County Commissioners/Staff Board of Education/Staff
Chair Bob Kirby Chairman Gene Jordan
Commissioner Ron Cummings Mr. Ricky Browder
Commissioner Larry McLaughlin Mr. Paul Clifton

Mr. Kevin Howard, County Manager Dr. Michael Sasscer, Supt.
Susanne Stallings, Board Clerk Sarah Hare, Board Clerk

Commissioner Chairman Bob Kirby called the Commissioners to order and welcomed all in
attendance.

Chairman Gene Jordan of the Board of Education called the Board of Education to order and
welcomed all in attendance.

This meeting was recorded, a copy of the audio recording is in the meeting file labeled
September 9, 2021.

Highschool Construction Plan (Singular vs. Phased)
Superintendent Dr. Michael Sasser thanked the Board for their work on this project to date. He
called on Rick Ott the Construction Manager for the project.

Mr. Ott provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding options for singular vs. phased
construction. The PowerPoint will be inserted below along with remarks for the minutes.



Phasing Options

New Building Construction

M. B. Kahn Construction
John A. Holmes High School

Mr. Ott stated that over the last 6 months working on this project he has been looking at the
fluctuation in construction materials pricing. He stated that now at the time for submittal of the
USDA loan he feels that he is prepared to make a recommendation regarding singular vs. phased
construction of the new high school. He stated he is prepared to recommend single phased
project. He then reviewed the following slides which explain the process for multi-phase
construction.



M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

He noted that new construction on the site of the current school during the school months is
problematic because of the demolition and second phase construction.



Multi-phase Building Construction

Entire existing
school remains
while Phase 1
Academic
Building is
constructed

Phase 1
Academic
Building is
constructed

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

Multi-phase Building Construction
I Café, Commons
and Gym to
Remain

Demolish
Existing
Academic
—{ Wings

Phase 1 PRI

[ | m’lz,a_.h.'_'- L]
Academic [H :Fﬂﬂﬂ_-' ‘]'ﬂ HRE
Building = =
Complete, then
Move Students -

M. B, Kahn Construction Co., Inc.




Multi-phase Building Construction

Secure Access to
Café, Commons,

Theater,l ; Gym during Phase 2
Gymnasium & Construction
Kitchen Dining '

Construction

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

d : -

Demolish
Existing Gym,
Commons and
Dining and
Finish Site and
Fields

1
i

(LT

. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.




Schedule

B e = — = = = = = as
:::::::::: o0 on Lo lom lom on (| om low | o Ll e e gl
iy Cornige kg T e T P b
v ot o Dinssmmnt, £55% Agrows o Tow |47E e 1 WE - U
Dimar s s Mol T Tk 1AM 1P LSS s Fmai Dusige ippransi
[TH7] metebory Ay s Waen Wl LTI WINT eytriery Ay Sypree
[ — Wosa e LTI RLE Beihy et
ity P 1 L L —_—
75| et bhiing Comsiruction Wdmn Mo AT RIZE amtets Belging (pmretien
o e (5 o i Clsspnim 1 M Coition. Bl M 1L W o i S o 5 i o e i
Batiny P W e e T —_—
[T i it e o Wings Wdm  Won MR WINT s & Tmmaion D08 Dopspenim mg
s Rabtar i b B e b [T ST S
W | Cou Bk 5 M P Cobties Taes  Mes SR YR Erm M (o o o st
ety Fropect Compbeimsn TR ks VR R TS —_—
nte & Do 2 e e Wha e G R b A oermm 3 & rovssnirs € by
R B M WU s TS P Kt e Pt
T Fro Lot N o Vit Pragant Comptatics.
T

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

Multi-phase Advantages / Disadvantages

Advantages

« Students stay on Campus during construction.

Disadvantages

+ Students stay on Campus during construction
+ Most costly option long-term
«  Minimum of 12 months of additional General Conditions $$3%
« Increased cost for temporary utilities, safety fencing, etc.
+ Increased contractor risk contingencies added
* Increased interest paid

« Students in close proximity to construction activities

h. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

He then reviewed the single Phase building construction plan.



Single-phase Building Construction
f Café, Commons

and Gym to

Remain

Demolish
Existing
Academic
Wings

M. B, Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

Single-phase Building Construction

Secure Access to
— T : T Café, Commons,
I L | g™ 8 H I Z

Bulld entire new | [Eoert e ueu G e S Y iy
school building I L T Construction
construction RS
at one time,
Start @ Academic
Bldg.

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.



Single-phase Building Construction

Complete Core
Building
Construction

Move Staff
Students to New
Academic
Building

Li xL ”,mE. L;l.

PHT RPCT W

Maintain Secure
Access between
Completed and
Existing Facilities

M. B. Kahn Construction Co.,

Single-phase Building Construction

A

Demolish
Existing Gym,
Commons and
Dining and
Finish Site and
Fields

]

% " b
i

(LT

nc.

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc




Schedule

John &, Holmes High Schesl
g Fanm e
g r— — — =
I e Lcmen el 1l | e e e e L e e e | s e
Aeriinly CoslgpuWidding Thd Ten WD AT
o vt e e, 07N g Gde Ten BN Tam ELRNE o e L s Pt "% el
s o s gl wami Tes LT ilnen Crtas R s o
4| s gy dpsee Mimn  Wed IV I LN Srirey ipry A
Rekeg T iy on s
Bty Form it mea
P macmen Tormoorars bosom Hlden WenWINH IWTINTE Prasarn St Tampeins Satos
Alerr & o (3 s o e e N WA b A e 6 Sl Wi
P b g sy s Wil Whea RN Wl M e L ]
T b iing Comatnacion P T e I
i o o b e e Mg AN Frme e 2 o e Lo
iy Fropari Fampleime. W e A T RO —
e e R Y] e e
prrcp B Dk (b G ke Mieen WA TRV e
1| Vi Foject Carmpiuiin Gl BRI AWEN T Compiminn,
-

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

Single-phase Advantages / Disadvantages

Advantages

« All mechanical, electrical, fire protection services areas are completed - no
temporary services required.

* Reduced number of staffistudent transitions.

* Reduced construction activity duration on a student occupied site.

* Reduce overall construction duration by one year.

+ Costsavings for Single Phase vs Multi-phase
* 12 months less General Conditions
« More competitive Bidding process
+ Less Contractor Risk Contingencies
+ § otherwise spent on GC's and Contingencies are now spent on useful space!

Disadvantages

« Relocate students for one Year
+ Move up the cost to renovate the 2" Floor of DF Walker

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.

He stated that in working on this project he and the Superintendent looked at the space occupied
by the Boys and Gitls Club, and learned of an opportunity to renovate space on the 2™ floor of
that building. He stated that the existing classrooms of the Boys and Girls Club were not enough
and additional portable classrooms would be required however if the 2™ floor is renovated for
classrooms that would be adequate to get them through construction. He stated that it is



estimated that it would cost the County slightly over $1 million to renovate the unfinished
second floor of that building. He stated that the proposed renovated space on the second floor
could be of use to the School or County in the future.

Boys and Girls Club Renovation
e L =77 i I.' o ; i ‘ B e re

&

. B, Kahn Construction Go., Inc.

ier ] T =
—— eyl | -

Wi, B, Kabn Construction Co., Inc




School Operations during Construction

Existing Fields and
Parking to Remain
== Through Building
~ Construction

Café, Commons &
Gym to Remain
Through Building
Construction

1 School
Entrances

Mr. Ott noted the red area in this slide is the construction zone and he will work with school staff
and Town officials to control the traffic flow.

School Operations during Construction

« Complete physical separation between construction and academic operations
= Separate access for construction operations, deliveries, personnel.

« Protective walls constructed for all partial demolition areas to secure/protect
and make weather-tight.

M. B. Kabhn Construction Co., Inc.



Project Completion

rrrrrr

i “wlig l ¥

;%’?ﬁ_) - !

Ty ™
aaaaaslbacdoe

.

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.

Dr. Sasscer stated that single phase approach allows most activities to continue and be
operational. He noted that the tennis courts would not be available until the summer of 2024. He
stated a location to play for the next two years would need to be determined.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked about the additional space to be used at the Boys and Girls
Club.

Dr. Sasscer stated that the Boys and Girls Club will allow the schools to use their first floor
during the day for classes. He stated their operational schedule could work around this. He stated
this building gives the school a total of 20-23 classrooms and they need 23-25. He stated Dr.
Bagwell has offered two spaces at COA for the additional needed space.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked how the schools would transition to allow the Boys and Girls
Club to operate.

Dr. Sasscer stated that the teachers on the 1% floor of the school will have the 4™ block set as
their planning period and they will most likely leave the campus. He stated that the Boys and
Girls Club likes the high school on the campus as it will give them more exposure to the high
school students. He added that for these same reasons COA likes them on the campus and it
increases the opportunity for dual enrollment.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked how the students will get to the cafeteria.



Dr. Sasscer stated a plan is being developed to shuttle the students over to the old campus site.
Commissioner McLaughlin asked if COA’s culinary building is an option.
Dr. Sasscer stated that the gym is needed during construction so that was not considered.

Mr. Ott stated he believes a single phased approach will condense the time for construction and
is the most cost effective. He stated that the County Manger and he will meet with the Architect
that performed the renovations to the first floor of DF Walker and his experience may help
expedite the project. He stated that the renovations would not be a tremendous undertaking
however an elevator will be needed on the site. He stated this will be an opportunity to build
some common space and future meeting spaces for the community as well as potential office
space for the Board of Education to have a presence on the campus.

Commissioner Kirby asked if the renovation cost is in the current construction budget.
Mr. Ott stated the renovation is not budgeted.

Chair Kirby stated he felt that the presentation states that $1.2 million will be saved by going to a
single phase approach.

Mr. Ott stated that this is not saving $1.2 million but is offsetting some of the costs and how
much work will need to be done.

Dr. Sasscer stated that the $50 million project has some constraints as the schools have had to
look at how to spend the most of the money on learning space and meets the educational
programming needs. He stated the monies budgeted for temporary classrooms will not be spent
on temporary buildings that will no longer be needed after construction.

Mr. Ott discussed the increase in construction materials over the past year as an additional
impact to the project cost.

Mr. Howard stated that there have been some discussions on funding sources for the 2" floor
renovation at Walker. He stated that the schools have some monies in capital to go towards the
renovation. He stated he felt that the County could look into corporate sponsorship for 1/3 of the
cost. He stated that there are business looking for conference and meeting space. He stated
specifically Regulator Marine is always looking for space to meet.

Commissioner Kirby asked if there is a budget for the renovation.

Mr. Ott stated yes. He stated he spoke with the County’s architect regarding the cost for
classroom space and future district offices. He stated that the elevator is $400,000. He stated that
there would be additional renovations after the students move to the new school to change the
classroom space to office and conference space.



Dr. Sasscer noted that construction costs are higher now and some of the budgeted contingencies
may be absorbed from rising costs, many of which are related to COVID. He stated that a 50%
share from the County is minimal for the investment.

Commissioner McLaughlin stated he agreed that the move made sense his concern was that the
financing has not been considered.

Mr. Ott stated he is requesting permission to get the info together on design to get hard numbers
for the cost estimate. He stated this needs to be done in 60 days. He stated he is asking
permission to begin working with the architect and then the Board of Commissioners can make
their final decision.

Dr. Sasscer stated that Mr. Farkas (the County’s engineer on the 1% floor project) was able to
renovate the space for $104 per square foot and he is estimating the cost now to be $118 per
square foot. He stated he estimates the total cost to the County for their /2 of the project to be
around $1.5 million. He stated that there are funds available to the schools through lottery
proceeds. He stated that he requests this be considered by the full Board of Commissioners at
their September 20™ meeting.

Commissioner Kirby discussed his concerns regarding the rising costs and the expressed impacts
of them on the school project. He reminded Mr. Ott that he assured the Board of Commissioners
he would do the project for $50 million. He noted that the County Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP) is being prioritized now. He stated that bidding the school project now could be risky if
prices continue to rise.

Mr. Howard asked if the school project would be bid out in January if material prices are still
rising.

Mr. Ott stated that he is working to amend the construction management and architect contracts
on the school project and they will go before the Board of Education on the 14th and
Commissioners on the 20™. He stated he would also bring the single phase construction project
to the Commissioners at their meeting on the 20™".

Dr. Sasscer stated in the interim he and the manager will look more into private donations,
lottery monies and capital monies in the state budget. He stated there are some viable options to
pay for the project.

Board of Education member Gene Jordan stated that this is an opportunity for the County to take
advantage of available resources.



Commissioner McLaughlin stated he agreed with the long term vision but noted additional
County capital needs such as the Courthouse, Jail and a Water project. He noted the middle
school is also something that will need future consideration.

Commissioner Kirby stated that this would eventually require a tax increase and he feels that the
Commissioners may eventually have to say no to a project. He discussed the County’s current
poverty rate and noted that meals were being delivered to children’s homes during the pandemic.
He stated that many residents cannot afford a tax increase.

Dr. Sasscer stated that as a tax payer he supports the long term investment for community civic
space on the DF Walker campus.

The Committee discussed the phasing options presented and unanimously consented to the single
phase approach.

Mr. Jordan stated that the Board of Education has already supported the single phase approach
option.

Signage

Dr. Sasscer stated that Dr. Bagwell with COA would like to make the campus more uniform with
the signage. He stated that there will be a proposal to have uniform signage at the campus.

Commissioner Kirby discussed the final phase of construction and stated that he hoped that
parking on the front lawn of the high school would be eliminated.

Dr. Sasscer stated that the future design of the campus will have ample parking.

Commissioner Kirby stated he would like for Mr. Ott to develop an operational budget for the
school as he feels going forward the new buildings will cost more to operate.

Mr. Ott stated he would do that in the future but for now he needs to move quickly on the single
phase approach.

Being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.



